
 

Corporate Director (Law and Governance) and  
Monitoring Officer, T W Mortimer LLB Solicitor 

  

 
 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 
 
Notice of a Meeting, to be held in the Committee Room 2 (Bad Münstereifel Room) - 
Ashford Borough Council on Friday, 13th September, 2019 at 10.00 am. 
 

 
The Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are:- 
 
 
Cllrs. Krause, Rogers, L Suddards.  
 
Cllr. Ledger (Reserve).  
 
Agenda 

  Page Nos. 
 

1.   Election of Chairman 
 

 

2.   Apologies/Substitutes 
 

 

 To receive Notification of Substitutes in accordance with Procedure 
Rule 1.2(iii) 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 

1 - 2 

 To declare any interests which fall under the following categories, as 
explained on the attached document: 

a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) 
b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) 
c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests 

See Agenda Item 3 for further details 
 

 

4.   Minutes 
 

3 - 8 

 To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of this Sub-Committee held on 
19 June 2019. 
 

 

5.   Procedure Note for Licensing Hearings 
 

9 - 12 

6.   Application for a premises licence for: Bridgefield Mini Market, 1 
Ryeland Way, Kingsnorth, Ashford, Kent, TN25 7FU 
 

13 - 42 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

28 Aug 19 
 
Queries concerning this agenda?  Please contact Member Services  Tel: 01233 330499 
Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk 
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.gov.uk/committees 

 
 

http://www.ashford.gov.uk/committees


Declarations of Interest (see also “Advice to Members” below) 
 
(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 2011, relating to items on 

this agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and 
the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated. 
 
A Member who declares a DPI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting for that 
item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted). 

 
(b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) under the Kent Code of Conduct relating to items on this 

agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the 
agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated. 
 
A Member who declares an OSI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting before 
the debate and vote on that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted).  
However, prior to leaving, the Member may address the Committee in the same way that a 
member of the public may do so. 

 
(c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests not required to be disclosed under (a) and 

(b), i.e. announcements made for transparency alone, such as: 
 

 Membership of amenity societies, Town/Community/Parish Councils, residents’ groups or 
other outside bodies that have expressed views or made representations, but the Member 
was not involved in compiling or making those views/representations, or 

 

 Where a Member knows a person involved, but does not have a close association with 
that person, or 

 

 Where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, 
employer, etc. but not his/her financial position. 

 
 [Note: Where an item would be likely to affect the financial position of a Member, relative, 

close associate, employer, etc.; OR where an item is an application made by a Member, 
relative, close associate, employer, etc., there is likely to be an OSI or in some cases a DPI. 
ALSO, holding a committee position/office within an amenity society or other outside body, or 
having any involvement in compiling/making views/representations by such a body, may give 
rise to a perception of bias and require the Member to take no part in any motion or vote.] 

 
Advice to Members on Declarations of Interest:   

(a) Government Guidance on DPI is available in DCLG’s Guide for Councillors, at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf 

 
(b) The Kent Code of Conduct was adopted by the Full Council on 19 July 2012, 

and a copy can be found in the Constitution alongside the Council’s Good Practice Protocol 
for Councillors dealing with Planning Matters. See  https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-

democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf  
 
(c) Where a Member declares a committee position or office within, or membership of, an outside 

body that has expressed views or made representations, this will be taken as a statement 
that the Member was not involved in compiling or making them and has retained an open 
mind on the item(s) in question. If this is not the case, the situation must be explained. 

 

If any Member has any doubt about any interest which he/she may have in any item on this 
agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Director of Law and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer, or from other Solicitors in Legal and Democracy as early as possible, and in advance 
of the Meeting. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf
https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf
https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



LHS/LS

65

Licensing Sub-Committee
Minutes of a Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held in Committee Room 2, 
Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford on the 19th June 2019.

Present:

Cllr. Shorter (Chairman); 

Cllrs. Krause, Wright. 

Also Present:

Licensing Officer, Licensing Officer, Principal Litigator, Legal Work Placement, 
Member Services Officer.

Mr J Simpson – Home Office Representative 

PC A Pringle – Police Representative 

Mr K Ahmadzai – Applicant.

Ms J Hammond – Supporting the Applicant. 

50 Election of Chairman
Resolved:

That Councillor Shorter be elected as Chairman for this Meeting of the 
Licensing Sub-Committee.

51 Minutes
Resolved:

That the Minutes of the Meeting of this Sub-Committee held on the 15th April 
2019 be approved and confirmed as a correct record.

52 The Codfather, 15 High Street, Ashford, Kent TN24 
8TH – Application for a Premises Licence

The Chairman opened the meeting and welcomed all those present. He explained 
the procedure to be followed at the meeting.

The Licensing Officer summarised the application as set out in the report.  The 
application was for a premises license for the sale of Late Night Refreshment.  She 
drew attention to the previous licence that had been revoked by the Licensing Sub-
Committee on 24th January 2019.  The application sought Late Night Refreshment 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



LHS/LS
190619

70

with the premises not being open to the public, and the license to be restricted to a 
delivery only service.  Representations had been received from both Kent Police and 
the Home Office.  Following confirmation that the application was for delivery only, 
Kent Police had withdrawn their representation.  The Home Office had raised 
concerns regarding the employment of illegal workers at the premises.  She 
highlighted the steps open to the Committee in making their decision, in that they 
could grant the application as is, grant the application with additional conditions or 
refuse the application. 

Mr Simpson from the Home Office drew attention to his representation and 
confirmed that a civil penalty fine for £30,000 was imposed on Codfather Kent Ltd, 
15 High Street, Ashford on 20th December 2018.  This was in respect of an 
Immigration Enforcement visit, on 15th June 2018, when two male nationals from 
Afghanistan were found working illegally at the premise.  There had been no 
objection or appeal from the employer so after 28 days appeal rights were 
exhausted.  The penalty was due and still outstanding.  He confirmed that the 
Applicant was the responsible person for employment at that time.  

Mr Ahmadzai advised that the Company had been fined by the Home Office, he felt 
that this did not relate to him personally. 

Mr Simpson advised that Mr Ahmadzai had attended their offices on 21st June 2018 
and admitted responsibility for the employment of staff therefore his comment was of 
interest, however not a matter for the Sub-Committee. 

The Principal Litigator advised the Sub-Committee that the fine had been issued by 
the Home Office, it had yet to be paid, it was not appealed and therefore was valid.  
It was not, however, a matter for the Sub-Committee to consider.  

Mr Ahmadzai advised that he had taken over the Company as a Director and since 
the revocation of the Late Night Refreshment licence the profitability of the company 
had deteriorated.  He advised that he was under the impression that he had applied 
for Late Night Refreshment, however it appeared that his Agent who had completed 
the forms on his behalf had not done so, just solely for Late Night Refreshment for 
delivery only.  

The Principal Litigator drew attention to the application that had been submitted and 
the hours of operation requested within.  Further, she advised that Kent Police had 
withdrawn their representation based on the application not permitting the public 
onto the premises after 11pm.  The Sub-Committee were only able to determine the 
application before them. 

Mr Ahmadzai advised that his legal representative had not arrived for the Hearing so 
he did not have the representation he would have liked.  Ms Hammond, his future 
Mother in Law, would act as support to him throughout the hearing and assist with 
his understanding of the questions put forward.  He felt that when submitting the 
application there had been resistance from the Licensing Team, additionally when 
displaying the notice there had been issues too.  He questioned why he had not 
been notified and why the application had not been granted. 

Page 4



LHS/LS
190619

69

The Chairman advised that the Licensing Team had followed the correct processes.  
Communications had been made with both the Applicant and his Agent throughout 
the process.  The Sub-Committee noted that what Mr Ahmadzai would like permitted 
and what had been applied for were different.  

In response to questions from the Sub-Committee Mr Ahmadzai advised that he 
would not open the premises to the public after 11pm.  He confirmed that he would 
do what was set out in the license and only that which he was permitted to do.  In 
respect of the licensing objectives, since the incident in January all staff had been 
trained in aggressive behaviour, drunk and disorderly persons.  He had a certificate 
to prove this, which had been seen by the Council.  Mr Ahmadzai could not confirm 
who had provided this training nor the specific course undertaken, but would be able 
to provide the certificate should the Sub-Committee request it.  In respect of the 
CCTV cameras, Mr Ahmadzai confirmed that he and another member of staff were 
able to operate the system. 

Mr Ahmadzai advised that he would not and did not employ illegal workers.  He had 
been advised by the Home Office of the checks to carry out, however did not have a 
written policy to support this.  Mr Ahmadzai advised that he had not employed any 
new staff since the incident in January but assured the Sub-Committee that any 
future new staff would be given appropriate training.  In response to questions, Mr 
Ahmadzai advised that he did not keep records of training undertaken by staff.  

The Sub-Committee drew attention to the conditions contained with the application 
and the subsequent conditions contained at pages 49 and 50 in the agenda papers.  
The Licensing Officer advised that the original conditions submitted were not suitable 
therefore others had been proposed and had been agreed by the Agent, the 
confirmation of this was contained within the agenda papers.  

In response to questions from the Sub-Committee, Mr Ahmadzai advised that he did 
not have an incident book nor did he have a procedure note for the operation of the 
CCTV system.  He was of the understanding that these would not be required until 
the licence was granted.  In conclusion, Mr Ahmadzai advised that he would operate 
within the licence should it be granted. 

The Sub-Committee then retired to make their decision.

On return, the Chairman read out the Licensing Sub-Committee’s decision and 
reasons.  A copy of the decision notice and reasoning was issued to the Applicant 
after it had been read.

Resolved:

That the licence not be granted.  

The decision notice and formal wording read out by the Chairman is appended to 
these Minutes.  The decision notice was duly issued to the Applicant at the meeting 
before the meeting was formally closed.  

Page 5



LHS/LS
190619

70

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY 19TH JUNE 2019

APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR THE COD FATHER 
(15 HIGH STREET, ASHFORD, KENT, TN24 8TH) 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE DECISION AND REASONINGS

LICENSING OFFICERS Alison Simmonds
Julian Postlethwaite 

REASON FOR 
MEETING:

An application was made for a Premises License for The 
Codfather, 15 High Street.  Representations were made by Kent 
Police and the Home Office. 

 

DELIBERATION: The Licensing Sub-Committee listened to the introduction given by the 
Licensing Officer in respect of the application made, for the serving of 
Late Night Refreshments by delivery only and the options open to the 
Committee.  

The Sub-Committee heard from Home Office representative who advised 
that a civil penalty fine for £30,000 was imposed on Codfather Kent on 
20th December 2018.  This was in respect of an Immigration 
Enforcement visit, on 15th June 2018, when two male nationals from 
Afghanistan were found working illegally at the premises.  There was no 
objection or appeal from the employer so after 28 days appeal rights 
were exhausted.  The penalty was due and still outstanding.  The 
Applicant was the person responsible at that time for the employing of 
staff. 

The Sub-Committee heard from the Applicant who advised that the 
application before the Committee was not that that he wished to pursue, 
however understood that was what was before the Sub-Committee for 
consideration.  

There was significant discussion regarding the fine from the Home 
Office, the Legal Advisor clarified that the fine was valid, had not been 
appealed and was not a matter for the consideration of the Sub-
Committee. 

The Sub-Committee noted that CCTV was in operation in the premises.  
The Applicant advised that this was kept for 28 days and he and a 
member of his staff could operate this, however there were no written 
instructions on the operation of this system. 

The Sub-Committee questioned what written procedures were in place to 
ensure the running of the business.  The Applicant confirmed that he did 
not have any procedures in place, let alone any written procedures.  He 
was questioned whether records had been kept regarding training that 

Page 6



LHS/LS
190619

69

had taken place following the hearing in January.  The Applicant 
confirmed that training had taken place and that he had a certificate to 
prove this.  He could not, however, confirm what training this was nor 
whom it had been provided by, he did note that he would be able to 
provide a copy to the Sub-Committee should it be necessary and noted 
that he had provided this to the Licensing Team previously. 

The Sub-Committee questioned what steps were in place to ensure that 
illegal workers were not employed in the future.  The Applicant advised, 
with assistance, that he had a checklist provided to him by the Home 
Office.  However, he did not have any written policies to support or 
expand upon the check list.  

The Sub-Committee then retired. 

The Sub-Committee considered the following relevant licensing 
objectives; prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety, the 
Prevention of Public Nuisance and the Prevention of Harm to Children.   

During deliberations the Sub-Committee considered the representation 
from the Home Office and the perceived ongoing risk and in particular 
the last paragraph in the written representation: ‘The Home Office 
(Immigration Enforcement) have presented this evidence to inform the 
licensing committee’s consideration and to draw to its attention the 
significant risk that the licensing objective of preventing crime and 
disorder is being undermined.’  

Furthermore, the demonstrable lack of understanding by the Applicant 
regarding control procedures and record keeping was of the upmost 
concern to the Sub-Committee.  The absence of written policies to 
support the operation of the business and in particular the employment, 
training and operation of the CCTV all of which would support the 
Licensing Objectives. 

The Sub-Committee questioned how the delivery service would work and 
to that end the Legal Advisor contacted the Applicant to enquire how the 
food would exit the premises and how orders would be placed for 
delivery.  The Applicant responded that the food would leave the 
premises via the rear exit and orders would be received via Just Eat or 
the telephone, with drivers using cars for delivery. 

The Sub-Committee noted that the conditions originally put forward as 
part of the application had been superseded by those contained on 
pages 49 and 50, a fact that the Applicant did not seem to be aware of 
when questioned.  In respect of the making of the application, it was 
apparent to the Sub-Committee that numerous errors had been made 
which had been highlighted by the Licensing Officer and it appeared from 
the Applicants statements during the meeting that the application had 
been made by his agent, with the Applicant having little to no input nor 
understanding of the process or the application put forward.  

Further to the aforementioned conditions, it was clear that the CCTV 
would not cover the area in which the licensable activity would be taking 
place, namely the rear of the premises.  

Page 7



LHS/LS
190619

70

The Sub-Committee were of the opinion that the evidence put forward by 
the Applicant, and that given verbally at the meeting, was not sufficient to 
support the licensing objectives, in particular the objective of preventing 
crime and disorder.  The lack of written policies and procedures did not 
give the Sub-Committee any confidence that should the application be 
granted that the Applicant would promote any of the licensing objectives. 

DECISION MADE: The licence not be granted.  

 

Right of Appeal

 There is a right of appeal against this decision. An appeal must be 
commenced by notice of appeal given by the Appellant or anybody affected 
by this decision to the Magistrates Court within 21 days of the date of this 
notice.

Dated: 19th June 2019
 

___________________________________________________________________

Queries concerning these minutes?  Please contact Member Services:
Telephone: 01233 330349     Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: http://ashford.moderngov.co.uk 

Page 8

http://ashford.moderngov.co.uk/


D:\Ashford\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\4\AI00003488\$rixraw5h.doc page 1 28/08/2019 15:42 

PROCEDURE NOTE FOR LICENSING HEARINGS 
 

1. Prior to the meeting of the Committee1, the Committee will have read and 
familiarised themselves with the Licensing Officer’s report and documents 
referred to in it. 

2. The hearing will take place in public, subject to a discretion to exclude the 
public and/or parties where the public interest in doing so outweighs the 
public interest in the hearing taking place in public2. The Committee may 
also exclude anyone behaving disruptively.3 

3. The parties4 are entitled to be assisted or represented by any person, 
whether or not legally qualified.  A party is entitled to withdraw any of their 
representations orally at the hearing or at least 24 hours before the day or 
the first day of the hearing.5  

4. The Committee may extend any time limit in the Regulations for a 
specified period where it considers this to be necessary in the public 
interest, but must state the period of the extension and the reason for it.6 
For example, the Committee may extend the time for making a request to 
call a witness (see paragraph 16- below). 

5. Where a party has notified the authority that he does not intend to attend, 
the Committee will proceed with the hearing in his absence. Where he 
has not so notified the authority but does not attend, the Committee may 
adjourn the hearing to a specified date where it considers it necessary in 
the public interest to do so.  Otherwise, it will proceed with the hearing.7 

6. Before proceeding in the absence of a party who has not indicated that 
they do not wish to attend, the Licensing Officer will attempt to ascertain 
the reason for that party’s non-attendance. 

7. The Committee may adjourn the hearing to a specified, or extra, date 
where it considers this to be necessary for the determination of the case.8 
There are limitations on the ability of the Committee to adjourn the case 
beyond the time limits for determination during the transitional period and 
on reviews following closure orders by the police.9 

8. At the outset of the meeting, a Chair will be elected and any personal 
and/or prejudicial interests declared.10 

9. Except where the Regulations make specific requirements, the procedure 
will be in the discretion of the Committee.11 

                                                
1 In this Note the expression “the Committee” includes a sub Committee. 
2 Reg 14 Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 
3 Reg 25. 
4 Reg 2(1) “a person to whom notice of the hearing is to be given under Reg 6(1)” – includes 

objectors and responsible authorities, such as the Police. 
5 Reg 10 
6 Reg 11. 
7 Reg 20. 
8 Reg 12. 
9 Reg 13. 
10 Model Code of Conduct 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



D:\Ashford\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\4\AI00003488\$rixraw5h.doc page 2 28/08/2019 15:42 

10. At the beginning of the hearing, the Committee will explain to the parties 
the procedure it proposes to follow.12  

11. The Chairman will indicate that all the papers before the Committee have 
been read and that the Committee is familiar with the issues. He will ask 
the parties to avoid repetition. 

12. The Chairman will indicate the order of presentation. 

13. If there are a number of objectors present, the Chairman may request that 
a spokesperson be appointed. He will make it clear that any party13 who 
wishes to speak will be able to do so, and that the appointment of a 
spokesperson does not mean that the objections of any interested party 
will be given less weight.  

14. The Chairman may also indicate how the Committee intends to deal with 
conditions proposed by the parties or by the Committee itself. He may ask 
the parties to attempt to agree a schedule of conditions for use if the 
Committee is minded to grant the application. This will not mean that the 
Committee has formed any view of the merits. It will only come to its 
decision at the end.  

15. A party is entitled to be represented or assisted by another person, 
whether or not that person is legally qualified. 14 

16. If a party wishes a person (other than himself or his representative) to 
appear at the hearing he must have made a request to do so prior to the 
hearing within the times prescribed in Reg. 8. The request must name the 
person and give a brief description of the point(s) on which that person 
may be able to assist. In such a case, the Committee will determine the 
application for permission at the outset of the hearing.15 In determining 
that request, the authority will consider the representations of all parties 
upon the matter and may consider the relevance of the proposed 
evidence, the assistance it will in fact offer to the Committee and the 
prejudice to the parties, if the evidence is admitted or excluded.16 

17. Each of the parties has a right to: 

a. address the Committee; 

b. give clarification of any point, where such clarification has been sought 
by the Council in its notice of hearing; 

c. question any other party, but only where this is expressly permitted by 
the Committee (see para 21 below).17 

18. The Committee must allow an equal maximum time for the parties to 
exercise their rights as set out in para 17 above.18  

                                                                                                                                       
11 Reg 21. 
12 Reg 22 
13 see footnote 4 
14 Reg 15. 
15 Reg 22 
16 Reg 22 
17 Reg 16. 

Page 10



D:\Ashford\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\4\AI00003488\$rixraw5h.doc page 3 28/08/2019 15:42 

19. The Committee will set the time of the hearing at the outset, having regard 
to its view of the length reasonably required for the hearing. It may hear 
the parties briefly before setting the maximum time. It may extend the time 
where circumstances require.19 

20. The hearing is to take the form of a discussion led by the Committee.20 
The Chairman will ensure that within the discussions, all parties are given 
an opportunity to state their case as set out in their written application/ 
representations and to meet the case of opposing parties. 

21. Cross-examination will not be permitted unless the Committee considers 
that it is required for it to give proper consideration to the case.21 Any 
application to cross-examine will be heard and dealt with at the hearing. 

22. The Committee may consider cross-examination to be required, for 
example, where there is a genuine issue of fact, which can only be 
resolved fairly through cross-examination.  

23. The Committee may question any party or other person(s) appearing.22 

24. The Committee may take into account documentary or other information 
provided by a party before the hearing. Information produced at the 
hearing may only be taken into account with the consent of all other 
parties.23 The parties are therefore strongly recommended to exchange 
documentary evidence and brief summaries of any proposed witness 
evidence at least 5 days before the hearing, otherwise they may be 
restricted in the information they can put before the committee. Any 
material exchanged should also be given to the licensing authority at the 
same time. 

25. The Committee must disregard any information given which is not 
relevant to the application, representations or notice of the party giving the 
information.  The Committee must also disregard any information which is 
not relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives.24 

26. In certain circumstances, the Committee is required by law to make its 
determination at the conclusion of the hearing. This includes certain 
applications made during the transitional period, counter-notices following 
police objections to temporary events notices, and reviews of premises 
licences following closure orders. Otherwise the Committee is required to 
determine the application within five working days of the day or the last 
day on which the hearing was held25. 

27. The Committee will give reasons for its decision and will confirm the 
decision in writing to the parties. 

                                                                                                                                       
18 Reg 24. 
19 Reg 11 
20 Reg 23. 
21 Reg 23. 
22 Reg 17. 
23 Reg 18. 
24 Reg 19. 
25 Reg 26. 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



EH47-01 REPORT 28/08/2019  

Agenda Item No: 
 

6 

Licence Reference 
 

WK/201906440 

Report To: 
 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

 13 SEPTEMBER 2019 

Report Title: 
 

Licensing Act 2003 - Application for a premises licence for: 
Bridgefield Mini Market, 1 Ryeland Way, Kingsnorth, 
Ashford, Kent, TN25 7FU 
 

Report Author: 
 

Alison Simmonds 

Summary: 
 

The report advises Members of a licence application under the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.   

Application type:     Application for a premises licence   

Applicant:  Vasthiyampillai Davidprapakaran 

Premises:  Bridgefield Mini Market, 1 Ryeland Way, 
Kingsnorth, Ashford, Kent, TN25 7FU 

Members are asked to determine whether to grant the 
premises licence, with or without additional conditions 
pursuant to the Act 

Key Decision: NO  
 

Affected Wards: 
 

Mersham, Sevington with Finberry 

Recommendations: 
 

The Committee is asked to determine the application and 
decide whether to grant the premises licence, with or 
without additional conditions pursuant to the Act. 
 

Policy Overview: 
 

The decision is to be made with regard to the Licensing Act 
2003, Secretary of State's Guidance issued under Section 182 
of the Act and the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy. 
Where the decision departs from the Policy or Guidance the 
departure must be directed solely at the attainment of the 
licensing objectives, and such departure must be supported by 
clear and cogent reasons. 
 

Financial 
Implications: 
 

The costs associated with processing the application are taken 
from licensing fee income. 
 

Other Material 
Implications: 
 

HUMAN RIGHTS: In considering this application the Sub 
Committee will balance the competing Human Rights of the 
various parties including the right to respect for private and 
family life, the protection of property and the right to a fair 
hearing.  
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



EH47-01 REPORT 28/08/2019  

LEGAL: Under the Licensing Act 2003 the Council has a duty 
to exercise licensing control of relevant premises.  

 
Exemption Clauses: 

 
Not applicable 
 

Background 
Papers: 

None 
 
 

Contacts: 
 

ali.simmonds@ashford.gov.uk 

 

Page 14



EH47-01 REPORT 28/08/2019  

Agenda Item No. 6 
 
Report Title: 
 

Licensing Act 2003 - Application for a premises licence for: 
Bridgefield Mini Market, 1 Ryeland Way, Kingsnorth, 
Ashford, Kent, TN25 7FU 

 
Purpose of the Report  

 
1. The report advises Members of a licence application under the provisions of the 

Licensing Act 2003.   
 

Application type:  Application for a premises licence 

Applicant:  Vasthiyampillai Davidprapakaran  

Premises:  Bridgefield Mini Market, 1 Ryeland Way, Kingsnorth, 
Ashford, Kent, TN25 7FU 

 
Issue to be Decided 

2. Members are asked to determine whether to grant the premises licence, with or 
without additional conditions pursuant to the Act. 

 
Background 
 

The Licensing Objectives 

 
3. The licensing authority must carry out its functions under the Licensing Act 2003 

with a view to promoting the licensing objectives namely, the prevention of 
crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention of public nuisance and the 
protection of children from harm (LA 2003, s4 (1)). 

Application details 
 

4. The application is for a premises licence. See Appendix A for the application 
for a premises licence, along with a plan of the internal layout of the premises.  
 

5. The application has been made and advertised in the correct manner.  
 

 
Representations from Responsible Authorities 
 
6. There are no representations from the relevant Responsible Authorities. 

 
Representations have been received from local residents and the Parish 
Council. 

7. Under section 35(5) of the Licensing Act 2003, representations are relevant if 
they are about the likely effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of 
the licensing objectives and (subsection 6) are made by an interested party or 
responsible authority within the prescribed period, are not withdrawn or, in the 
opinion of the licensing authority, frivolous or vexatious 

Page 15



EH47-01 REPORT 28/08/2019  

8. The prescribed period for the receipt of such representations in this case is, by 
Regulation 22(b) of the Licensing Act 2003 Regulations 2005 "during a period 
of 28 consecutive days starting on the day after the day on which the application 
to which it relates was given to the authority by the applicant".  

9. Three parties have made representations; these are detailed in Appendix B. 

The main concerns arising from the representations are the potential for noise 
nuisance and anti-social behaviour, particularly due to the proximity to the local 
play park and residential flats, and the effect of having a licence until 2230.  

 

Relevant premises operating hours  

 
10. The application proposes to permit: 

Sale of alcohol* 
(Off-sales only) 

 

Monday to Sunday 
08:00 – 22:30 

 

Hours premises open to 
the public* 

 

Monday to Sunday 
06:30 – 22:30 

 

*Seasonal variations 
 

An additional 30 minutes until 23:00 on 
Christmas and New Years Eve, Boxing 

Day and Bank Holidays 

 
General 

 

11. Members attention is drawn to the following matters:  

 All applications are to be considered on their merits as well as against the 
relevant policy and statutory framework. 

 Due regard should be given to the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998, 
Race Relations Act 1976 as amended by the Race Relations (Amendment) 
Act 2000 and Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and, so far as 
possible, reflect local crime prevention strategies. 

 The operating schedule forms part of the completed application form for a 
premises licence. The operating schedule should include information, which 
is necessary to enable any responsible authority or other party to assess 
whether the steps to be taken to promote licensing objectives are 
satisfactory. 

 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion 
has been engaged following the making of relevant representations and it 
has been satisfied at a hearing of the appropriateness to impose conditions 
due to the representations raised. It may then only impose such conditions 
as are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the 
consideration of the representations. However, in order to minimise 
problems and the necessity for hearings, it would be sensible for applicants 
to consult with responsible authorities when schedules are being prepared. 
This would allow for proper liaison before representations prove necessary.  

Page 16



EH47-01 REPORT 28/08/2019  

 Where problems have occurred, the application for the new licence will 
afford an opportunity for responsible authorities and other parties to raise 
the issue through representations and for conditions addressing any 
nuisance previously caused to be attached following a hearing where 
necessary. The views of local residents will be important in establishing the 
extent of any history of problems. 

 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, 
through representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and 
what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific 
premises licences and club premises certificates. It is therefore important 
that in considering the promotion of this licensing objective, licensing 
authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the licensable 
activities at the specific premises on persons living and working (including 
those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be 
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise 
nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter.  

 Public nuisance is not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad 
common law meaning for the Act’s purposes. It is important to remember 
that the prevention of public nuisance could therefore include low-level 
nuisance, perhaps affecting a few people living locally, as well as major 
disturbance affecting the whole community. It may also include in 
appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity 
of other parties living and working in the area of a licensed premises. Public 
nuisance may also arise as a result of artificial light, dust, odour and insects 
or where its effect its prejudicial to health.  

 Where applications have given rise to representations, any necessary and 
appropriate conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. 
For example, music noise from premises usually occurs from mid-evening 
until either late evening or early morning when residents in adjacent 
properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. In certain 
circumstances, conditions relating to noise may also prove necessary to 
address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave the 
premises and therefore, in the immediate vicinity of the premises. 

 In the context of preventing public nuisance, it is essential that conditions 
are focused on measures within the direct control of the licence holder. 
Conditions relating to public nuisance caused by the anti-social behaviour 
of customers once they are beyond the control of the licence holder, or 
premises management cannot be justified and will not serve to promote the 
licensing objectives in relation to the licensing activities carried on at the 
premises. Beyond the vicinity of the premises, these are matters for 
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who 
engages in anti-social behaviour is accountable in his own right. However, 
it would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a 
condition it considered appropriate following relevant representations from 
an interested party that requires the licence holder to place signs at the exits 
from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area 
and to respect the rights of people living near-by to a peaceful night. After a 
licence has been granted or varied, a complaint relating to a general (crime 
and disorder) situation in a town centre should generally not be regarded as 
a relevant representation unless it can be positively tied or linked by a causal 

Page 17



EH47-01 REPORT 28/08/2019  

connection to particular premises, which would allow for a proper review of 
the licence.  

 The Guidance states “the conditions that are appropriate for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives should emerge initially from the risk assessment 
carried out by a prospective licence or certificate holder, which they should 
carry out before making their application for a premises licence or club 
premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps recorded in the 
operating schedule or club operating schedule which must also set out the 
proposed hours during which licensable activities will be conducted and any 
other hours during which the premises will be open to the public.” 

 It is perfectly possible that in certain cases, because the test is one of 
appropriateness, where there are other legislative provisions, which are 
relevant and must be observed by the applicant, no additional conditions at 
all are needed to promote the licensing objectives. 

Decision options 
 
12. The steps an authority may take are: 

a) Grant the licence subject to 

i) Such conditions as are consistent with the operating schedule 
accompanying the application modified to such an extent as the 
authority considers necessary for the promotion of the four 
licensing objectives, and 

ii) any conditions which must under section 19, 20, or 21  of the 
Licensing Act 2003 be included in the licence (the mandatory 
conditions). 

b) Exclude, or limit, the scope of any of the licensable activities to which the 
application relates. 

c) Refuse to specify the person named in the application as the Designated 
Premises Supervisor (DPS). 

d) Reject the application. 

 

Consultation 
 
13. All relevant parties have followed the consultation procedures required under 

the Licensing Act 2003. 

Implications Assessment 
 

14. The decision should be made with regard to the Secretary of State's Guidance 
and the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. 
Where the decision departs from either the Guidance or the policy clear and 
cogent reasons must be given. Members should be aware that if such a 
departure is made the risk of appeal/challenge is increased. 

Page 18



EH47-01 REPORT 28/08/2019  

Human Rights 
 

15. While all Convention Rights must be considered, those which are of particular 
relevance to the application are: 

 Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life 
 Article 1 of the First Protocol - Protection of Property 
 Article 10 – Freedom of Expression 
 
The full text of each Article is given in the attached Appendix C. 
 
 

Handling 
 
16. The timings for handling the application are set out in the Licensing Act 2003 

and related regulations. 

 
Conclusion 

 
17. Members must ensure that the application is considered on its merits, as well 

as against the relevant guidance, policy and statutory framework. 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



 

Page 40



APPENDIX C - HUMAN RIGHTS 
 
Article 8 
 
1. Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his 

correspondence. 
 
2. There shall be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right 

except such as is in accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic 
society in the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being 
of the country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health 
or morals, or for the protection of the rights and freedoms of others. 

 
 
Article 1 of the First Protocol 
 
Every natural or legal person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his possessions. 
No one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest and subject 
to the conditions provided for by law and by the general principles of international law. 
The preceding provisions shall not, however, in any way impair the right of a State to 
enforce such laws, as it deems necessary to control the use of property in accordance 
with the general interest or to secure the payment of taxes or other contributions or 
penalties. 
 
 
Article 10 
 
3. Everyone has the right to freedom of expression. This right shall include freedom 

to hold opinions and to receive and impart information and ideas without 
interference by public authority and regardless of frontiers. This Article shall not 
prevent States from requiring the licensing of broadcasting, television or cinema 
enterprises.  

 
4. The exercise of these freedoms, since it carries with it duties and responsibilities, 

may be subject to such formalities, conditions, restrictions or penalties as are 
prescribed by law and are necessary in a democratic society, in the interests of 
national security, territorial integrity or public safety, for the prevention of disorder 
or crime, for the protection of health or morals, for the protection of the reputation 
or rights of others, for preventing the disclosure of information received in 
confidence, or for maintaining the authority and impartiality of the judiciary. 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Minutes
	7 Minutes for this Meeting

	5 Procedure Note for Licensing Hearings
	6 Application for a premises licence for: Bridgefield Mini Market, 1 Ryeland Way, Kingsnorth, Ashford, Kent, TN25 7FU
	Appendix A
	Appendix B.pdf
	APPENDIX C


